1	CITY OF YACHATS
2	
3	PARKS AND COMMONS COMMISSION
4	October 18, 2018
5	
6	Draft Minutes
7	
8	
9	Chair John Moore called to order the October 18, 2018 meeting of the Parks and
10	Commons Commission at 3:00 pm in Room 1 of the Yachats Commons. Members
11	present: John Moore, Linda Johnson, Dean Shrock, and Michael Hempen, Absent:
12	Scott Gordon and Derek Ojeda. Also Present: Facilities Manager Heather Hoen, Trails
13	Leads Joanne Kittel, Bob Langley, and Loren Dickenson. Audience: 15.
14 15	Minuton August 16, 2019
15 16	I. Minutes – August 16, 2018 Commissioner Shrock moved to approve the September 20, 2018 minutes as
17	presented: Aye -4 ; No -0 .
18	presented. Aye -4 , $NO = 0$.
19	II. Reports
20	A. Facilities Manager
21	Facilities Manager Hoen reported that she spoke to the City's insurance agent who told
22	her they could treat the vegetarian potluck event as a by-donation event as long as the
23	group does not cook in the kitchen and they appoint a volunteer to be the responsible
24	party for the City at that event.
25	
26	B. Yachats Trails Committee
27	Trails Lead Bob Langley asked the Commission if they had any feedback on next steps
28	for the trails.
29	
30	Moore reported he had received two letters, one from Betty Bahn and one from Stacy
31	Rosenberg, regarding the additional Trails work in the wetlands. Moore explained he
32	understood that there was a public hearing on the Parks Plan when it was approved around 2011. Moore recalled Bahn, a Master Gardner, was involved in the Parks
33 34	Master Plan before Rieseck's 2011 plan. Bahn stated in her letter that she believed
34 35	there were no wildlife, plants, or endangered species west of the west pond. Bahn did
36	not believe the wetlands preservation issues applied to the section of the park where
37	the trail would be.
38	
39	Shrock expressed great respect for Kittel, Langley, and Bahn to be aware of any
40	potential environmental concerns. Commissioner Johnson agreed with Shrock on the
41	idea that sufficient study had been done. Trails Lead Joanne Kittel reported Bahn was
42	one of three leaders on the wetlands restoration project and she was very
43	knowledgeable of birds and flora in the area. Kittel suggested that the trail would not be
44	an enticement for people to camp and transients to loiter as increased foot traffic was
45	not conducive to "hanging out." Kittel noted there was a privacy issue for Rosenberg,
46	as the trail would go by her bedroom window. Kittel was willing to work with Rosenberg

- 1 to establish some plant barrier to increase her privacy. Langley added that Trails
- 2 wanted to place a split-rail fence to indicate the location of the trail to pedestrians.
- 3
- 4 Moore asked if fence posts could be dug in that area without archeological testing. Kittel explained the Trails group has installed concrete abutments on top of the ground 5
- 6 for the foundation for of any fence or structural post. 7
- 8 Hempen asked if Trails should wait until the rains to see where water collects. Langley believed Trails could address water issues in the area. 9
- 10

11 Langley inquired why a motion was needed at this time when a recommendation was not previously needed. Kittel asked Moore to forward Bahn's letter to the Council. 12

- Hempen moved to move forward with plans for the trails upgrade: Aye -4; No -0. 14
- 15

13

- 16
- 17
- Langley clarified that Trails should wait on work until they Council addresses the matter.
- 18

19

C. Year to Date Revenues and Expenses - no report in packet

20 III. Business

A. Commons Multipurpose Room Floor

21 22 Hoen noted the contractor for the engineered hardwood floors was present. Mike 23 Powell from M Powell Design and Construction reported that with the new US tariffs, flooring prices are rapidly changing. He stated the engineered hardwood floor with a 24 porcelain finish could be refinished one time. He noted Cortec product could not be 25 26 refinished. He reported the Cortec flooring had a 40-year warranty. Hoen added that the contractor would look for other suppliers who might furnish the materials at a 27 cheaper cost. Powell estimated the current cost to be around \$29,900. 28 29 Powell reported Ray's in Waldport had recently installed a Cortec product. Hempen 30 indicated he talked to the manager at Ray's who stated they chose the Cortec because 31 32 of evidence of successful installations in the area and at their other stores. Powell

- suggested the Cortec would be slightly cheaper than the hardwood. He estimated it 33 would take 7-10 days to complete the installation. 34
- 35
- 36 Hempen asked how often he had seen people refinish the engineered hardwood.
- Powell did not know of commercial applications being sanded, but noted residents often 37 38 do.
- 39
- Powell recommended the Cortec product as the most durable and best value. Hoen 40 41 expressed she had confidence in Powell's recommendation.
- 42
- 43 Johnson clarified that refinishing the floor would require sanding the entire floor, not just
- a section, because of the finish. Hempen clarified that a refinishing would cost up to 44
- 45 one-third of the installation costs. Shrock noted that a repair of the Cortec might be
- cheaper than sanding the entire hardwood floor. 46

- 1
- 2 Shrock asked Hoen if there was an ideal time to do the work given the high usage of the room. Hoen indicated use slows after the Celtic Festival in November. 3
- 4

John Purcell asked if the subfloor had been examined. Hoen noted the subfloor was 5 car decking. Barbara Covel stated she had the engineered hardwood in their home and 6 7 was disappointed in how easily it could scratch. She indicated the Cortec was virtually 8 waterproof.

9

11

10 Moore indicated Clerk Richter was ready to take the supplemental budget.

Johnson moved to proceed with a Cortec product for the Multipurpose Room floor: Aye 12 – 4; No - 0. 13

14 15

B. Commons Pricing

Fran Morse expressed thanks to the Commission for addressing a complaint by a 16 community member. Morse read her statement on why the City should grandfather in a 17 low cost agreement for One of Us Productions to rent the Commons. She noted from 18 the Candidate's Forum last night there seemed to be concern with changes in Yachats 19 not being good. She proposed the emotional change that is going around was more 20 about the dissolution of the Friends of the Commons. She indicated she wanted to 21 address Big Bang, YAAS, and One of Us Productions.

22

23

24 Morse recalled the Friends had previously had issues around whether they reported to Parks and Commons because of the money the City gave to the Friends for the User 25

26 Support Manager position. She suggested that issue has gone away and Parks and

Commons was the remaining entity that could take ownership of long-standing, 27

28 treasured groups. She noted the issue was about more than money. She believed the

impact of the Parks and Commons decision around this issue would be a significant 29

statement and resolution of the tension in the community. 30

31

32 Morse stated that while an offer had been made to sponsor One of Us, she believed

33 these groups should have deeper, more than just financial support from the City. She

suggested Parks and Commons could help diminish the negativity in the community. 34

35

36 Morse asked the Commission to consider grandfathering in these groups because of their relationships with the City. 37

38

39 Hempen indicated he believed Morse's letter was convincing and he very much wanted

to support the arts. He recalled the City Council did not want to make exceptions when 40

- 41 they re-examined the rate structure. Morse suggested new organizations were "all about the people" but after they grow, they become more about the rules. She 42
- suggested that there was a gray zone between the two states. 43
- 44

45 Johnson noted all three groups actually have a home and have negotiated agreeable fee structures. Moore noted there might be an issue with the One of Us arrangement 46

with the Drift Inn. Johnson did not support making such a decision at this time. 1 2 Shrock expressed concerned that One of Us wanted their special rate so they could 3 4 continue to have the ability to give money away. He was not in favor of making 5 exceptions. He was not sure that a decision needed to be made today. 6 7 Carl Miller reported he thought the deal with Hetzler was still on the table but it would be 8 through Polly Plumb Productions. 9 10 Hoen asked Miller what the Friends previously did for One of Us. Miller indicated they allowed them to pay a total of \$400 to use the equipment, and the facilities, and they 11 had insurance under the Chamber. 12 13 Hoen stated she felt like the "elephant in the room." She noted the city was working very 14 hard to pick up where the Friends left off, noting the vegetarian dinner. 15 16 17 Hoen proposed that 501(c)3 organizations be able to give a donation back to the Commons for care of the building in lieu of rent. She noted that insurance would still 18 need to be covered. She suggested the 501(c)3's carry their own liability insurance. 19 20 She noted that it would likely be cheaper for these nonprofits to purchase insurance and make a contribution. Morse liked what Hoen suggested. Morse indicated she did not 21 22 care about the money. Morse stated cares about the emotions of the community. 23 Moore recalled when Manager Davies came to him about all of the exceptions to the 24 Commons rent system, she was emphatic about standardizing the rates. Moore 25 26 acknowledged he underestimated the emotional backlash that came out of that decision. Moore suggested the issue was not about taking money in, it was about 27 28 finding ways to maintain the building. 29 30 Moore noted at the last Commission meeting, the Commission was ready to establish a relationship with One of Us to charge 25% of net revenues in lieu of rent. Johnni 31 32 Prince, One of Us Board Member, added that the meeting of the Friends Board with 33 Commission members was successful and One of Us was willing to proceed with that 34 arrangement. 35 36 Anderson explained her opinion had changed and that she was supportive of special arrangements for groups like One of Us. However, she cautioned that giving a blanket 37 deal to 501(c)3 organizations would not be wise as some of these groups as some are 38 39 set up for a specific event related to their mission and other are more of an umbrella group who support a large array of activity. 40 41 42 Shrock stated he would not support any exemption for One of Us as long as they were giving away money without paying "their fair share." 43 44 45 Johnson asked for clarification on the different percentage rates offered to One of Us 46 and Big Band. Moore explained One of Us has substantially different expenses than

1 Big Band.

2

Hempen argued that what is more at stake here is the sense of the Community that the
City does not care. He believed that it was important to show that the City was not just
here for money.

6

7 Moore noted the Commission was deadlock so a vote today would not be productive,

8 and he suggested that the Commission address the matter again at the November

9 meeting. Morse noted that the fact that there were two Commissioners absent

10 warranted another discussion at the next meeting. Johnson and Shrock did not want to

readdress the issue. Moore wanted to have a full Commission before making a finaldecision on such an important matter.

13

Prince clarified that the money One of Us "gives away" comes out of their net and was not counted as an expense from the gross. She added that Shrock's comments were asking One of Us to violate their mission statement to give back to the community.

17 18

C. Commons Policy Manual Update

Moore reported he was anticipating resolving the One of Us questions so he could take
the matter back to Council for final approval. Given the plans to readdress the issue in
November, Moore indicated this issue would be on the November agenda.

2223 IV. Other Business

A. From the Commission - none

B. From the floor

Langley noted he has attended many meetings and was under the impression of the
deal with One of Us was to avoid going into debt. Therefore, he thought their argument
about it being not an expense was invalid.

30

24

25 26

John Purcell stated he was interested in being a member of the Commission. Purcell
 summarized his background. He noted his experience in running a nonprofit and
 managing a large electrical distributer. He stated his only hesitation was over being
 new to the Community.

35

Shrock recalled when he and his wife came to Yachats they were eager to contribute.
He stated he would love to have Purcell on board. Moore, Hempen, and Johnson
concurred with Shrock.

- 39
- Hempen moved to recommend to the City Council that they appoint John Purcell to
 Parks and Commons Commission: Aye 4; No 0.
- 42
- 43 Moore adjourned the meeting at 4:32 pm.
- 44
- 45
- 46

W. John Moore, Chair

Date

Minutes prepared by H.H. Anderson, October 22, 2018